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We have audited the annexed balance sheet of Nestlé Pakistan Limited (≈the Company∆) as at 31
December 2006 and the related profit and loss account, cash flow statement and statement of
changes in equity, together with the notes forming part thereof, for the year then ended and we
state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge
and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

It is the responsibility of the company»s management to establish and maintain a system of internal
control, and prepare and present the above said statements in conformity with the approved
accounting standards and the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. These
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the above said statements are free of any material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the above said statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting policies and significant estimates made by management,
as well as, evaluating the overall presentation of the above said statements. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion and, after due verification, we report that:

a) in our opinion,  proper books of account have been kept  by the Company as required by the
Companies Ordinance, 1984;

b) in our opinion:

i) the balance sheet and profit and loss account together with the notes thereon have
been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Ordinance, 1984, and are in
agreement with the books of account and are further in accordance with accounting
policies consistently applied except for changes referred to in note 2.4 and 2.16 to
the accounts with which we concur;

ii) the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Company's
business; and

iii) the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the
year were in accordance with the objects of the Company;

c) in  our  opinion  and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the balance sheet, profit and loss account, cash flow statement and statement of
changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof conform with approved
accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and, give the information required by the
Companies Ordinance, 1984, in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair
view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 December 2006 and of the profit, its cash
flows and changes in equity for the year then ended; and

d) in our opinion Zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980, was
deducted by the Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section
7 of that Ordinance.

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Lahore: March 05, 2007
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20062006200620062006 20052005200520052005

RestatedRestatedRestatedRestatedRestated

NoteNoteNoteNoteNote (Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)

EQUITY AND LIABILITIESEQUITY AND LIABILITIESEQUITY AND LIABILITIESEQUITY AND LIABILITIESEQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital and reservesShare capital and reservesShare capital and reservesShare capital and reservesShare capital and reserves

Authorized capital
75,000,000 (2005: 75,000,000)
   ordinary shares of Rs 10 each  750,000  750,000

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 3  453,496  453,496
Share premium 4  249,527  249,527
General reserve 280,000  280,000
Accumulated profit  1,548,057  880,359

2,531,080  1,863,382

Non Current LiabilitiesNon Current LiabilitiesNon Current LiabilitiesNon Current LiabilitiesNon Current Liabilities

Long term finances 5  3,963,700  1,946,850
Deferred taxation 6  942,858  444,414
Retirement and other benefits 7  234,305  218,868
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 8  31,471  -

5,172,334  2,610,132

Current liabilitiesCurrent liabilitiesCurrent liabilitiesCurrent liabilitiesCurrent liabilities

Current portion of:
   Long term finances 5  300,000  400,000
   Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 8  8,392  31
Short term borrowings - secured 9  700,000  125,000
Short term running finance under mark-up
  arrangements - secured 10  1,817,711  1,121,041
Customer security deposits - interest free  102,307  80,472
Trade and other payables 11  2,197,529  2,188,402
Interest and mark-up accrued 12  98,549  45,258
Dividend payable  -  453,496

5,224,488  4,413,700
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 13

12,927,902  8,887,214

The annexed notes from 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financial statements.

BALANCE SHEET AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2006BALANCE SHEET AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2006BALANCE SHEET AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2006BALANCE SHEET AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2006BALANCE SHEET AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2006
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20062006200620062006 20052005200520052005

RestatedRestatedRestatedRestatedRestated

NoteNoteNoteNoteNote (Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)

ASSETSASSETSASSETSASSETSASSETS

Tangible fixed assetsTangible fixed assetsTangible fixed assetsTangible fixed assetsTangible fixed assets

Property, plant and equipment 14  6,941,332  3,298,880
Assets subject to finance lease 15  44,717  20
Capital work-in-progress 16  1,107,052  1,788,475

8,093,101  5,087,375

Intangible assetsIntangible assetsIntangible assetsIntangible assetsIntangible assets 17  135,020  177,658

Long term loans and advancesLong term loans and advancesLong term loans and advancesLong term loans and advancesLong term loans and advances 18  66,008  47,691

Long term security depositsLong term security depositsLong term security depositsLong term security depositsLong term security deposits  6,088  5,338

Current assetsCurrent assetsCurrent assetsCurrent assetsCurrent assets

Stores and spares 19  329,346  249,921
Stock in trade 20  1,907,300  1,492,983
Trade debts 21  238,291  47,298
Current portion of long term loans and advances 18  8,771  3,624
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables 22  2,109,314  916,331
Cash and bank balances 23  34,663  858,995

 4,627,685  3,569,152

12,927,902 Ω  8,887,214

BALANCE SHEET AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2006BALANCE SHEET AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2006BALANCE SHEET AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2006BALANCE SHEET AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2006BALANCE SHEET AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2006

RAYMOND FRANKERAYMOND FRANKERAYMOND FRANKERAYMOND FRANKERAYMOND FRANKE ROLAND DECORVETROLAND DECORVETROLAND DECORVETROLAND DECORVETROLAND DECORVET   SYED YAWAR ALI  SYED YAWAR ALI  SYED YAWAR ALI  SYED YAWAR ALI  SYED YAWAR ALI
Head of Finance & Control Chief Executive Chairman
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20062006200620062006 20052005200520052005

RestatedRestatedRestatedRestatedRestated

NoteNoteNoteNoteNote (Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)

Sales - net 24  22,030,958  17,142,363
Cost of goods sold 25  (15,778,330)  (12,354,618)

Gross profitGross profitGross profitGross profitGross profit  6,252,628  4,787,745

Distribution and selling expenses 26  (2,925,118)  (2,090,469)

Administration expenses 27  (687,092) (576,715)

Operating profitOperating profitOperating profitOperating profitOperating profit  2,640,418  2,120,561

Finance cost 28  (447,774)  (180,108)
Other operating expenses 29 (263,921)  (356,528)

(711,695)  (536,636)

Other operating income 30  76,732  53,151

Profit before taxationProfit before taxationProfit before taxationProfit before taxationProfit before taxation  2,005,455  1,637,076

Taxation 31  (642,165)  (484,145)

Profit after taxationProfit after taxationProfit after taxationProfit after taxationProfit after taxation 1,363,290  1,152,931

Earnings per share - basic and diluted (Rupees) 32  30.06  25.42

Appropriations have been reflected in the statement of changes in equity.

The annexed notes from 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financial statements.

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNTPROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNTPROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNTPROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNTPROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

RAYMOND FRANKERAYMOND FRANKERAYMOND FRANKERAYMOND FRANKERAYMOND FRANKE ROLAND DECORVETROLAND DECORVETROLAND DECORVETROLAND DECORVETROLAND DECORVET   SYED YAWAR ALI  SYED YAWAR ALI  SYED YAWAR ALI  SYED YAWAR ALI  SYED YAWAR ALI
Head of Finance & Control Chief Executive Chairman
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CASH FLOW STATEMENTCASH FLOW STATEMENTCASH FLOW STATEMENTCASH FLOW STATEMENTCASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 20062006200620062006

20062006200620062006 20052005200520052005

RestatedRestatedRestatedRestatedRestated

NoteNoteNoteNoteNote (Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)

Cash flow from operating activitiesCash flow from operating activitiesCash flow from operating activitiesCash flow from operating activitiesCash flow from operating activities

Cash generated from operations 34  1,619,014  3,755,450
(Increase)/decrease in long term security deposits  (750)  659
(Increase) in long term loans and advances  (23,464)  (27,992)
Retirement and other benefits paid  (69,295)  (81,911)
Finance cost paid  (394,483)  (147,720)
Taxes paid  (484,975)  (582,411)

Net cash generated from operating activitiesNet cash generated from operating activitiesNet cash generated from operating activitiesNet cash generated from operating activitiesNet cash generated from operating activities  646,047  2,916,075

Cash flow from investing activitiesCash flow from investing activitiesCash flow from investing activitiesCash flow from investing activitiesCash flow from investing activities

Fixed capital expenditure  (3,584,428)  (2,766,273)
Sale proceeds of property, plant and equipment  63,512  4,622

Net cash used in investing activitiesNet cash used in investing activitiesNet cash used in investing activitiesNet cash used in investing activitiesNet cash used in investing activities  (3,520,916)  (2,761,651)

Cash flow from financing activitiesCash flow from financing activitiesCash flow from financing activitiesCash flow from financing activitiesCash flow from financing activities

Receipt of long term finances  3,066,850  896,850
Repayment of long term finances  (1,150,000)  (200,000)
Net movement in short term borrowings - secured  575,000  125,000
Payment of finance lease liabilities  (5,213)  (115)
Dividend paid  (1,132,770)  (226,346)

Net cash generated from financing activitiesNet cash generated from financing activitiesNet cash generated from financing activitiesNet cash generated from financing activitiesNet cash generated from financing activities  1,353,867  595,389

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalentsNet (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalentsNet (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalentsNet (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalentsNet (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents  (1,521,002)  749,813

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the yearCash and cash equivalents at beginning of the yearCash and cash equivalents at beginning of the yearCash and cash equivalents at beginning of the yearCash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year  (262,046)  (1,011,859)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the yearCash and cash equivalents at end of the yearCash and cash equivalents at end of the yearCash and cash equivalents at end of the yearCash and cash equivalents at end of the year 35  (1,783,048)  (262,046)

The annexed notes from 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financial statements.

RAYMOND FRANKERAYMOND FRANKERAYMOND FRANKERAYMOND FRANKERAYMOND FRANKE ROLAND DECORVETROLAND DECORVETROLAND DECORVETROLAND DECORVETROLAND DECORVET   SYED YAWAR ALI  SYED YAWAR ALI  SYED YAWAR ALI  SYED YAWAR ALI  SYED YAWAR ALI
Head of Finance & Control Chief Executive Chairman
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITYSTATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITYSTATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITYSTATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITYSTATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 20062006200620062006

       Capital reserve       Capital reserve       Capital reserve       Capital reserve       Capital reserve    Revenue reserve   Revenue reserve   Revenue reserve   Revenue reserve   Revenue reserve

ShareShareShareShareShare ShareShareShareShareShare AmalgamationAmalgamationAmalgamationAmalgamationAmalgamation GeneralGeneralGeneralGeneralGeneral AccumulatedAccumulatedAccumulatedAccumulatedAccumulated

capitalcapitalcapitalcapitalcapital premiumpremiumpremiumpremiumpremium reservereservereservereservereserve reservereservereservereservereserve profitprofitprofitprofitprofit TotalTotalTotalTotalTotal

                                     (Rupees in thousands)                                     (Rupees in thousands)                                     (Rupees in thousands)                                     (Rupees in thousands)                                     (Rupees in thousands)

Balance as at December 31, 2004 as
    previously reported  452,730  249,527  (41,511)  280,000  547,440  1,488,186

Effect of change in accounting policy
    as refered in note 2.4  -  -  -  -  (85,495)  (85,495)

Balance as at December 31, 2004 - restatedBalance as at December 31, 2004 - restatedBalance as at December 31, 2004 - restatedBalance as at December 31, 2004 - restatedBalance as at December 31, 2004 - restated  452,730  249,527  (41,511)  280,000  461,945  1,402,691

Final dividend for the year ended
    December 31, 2004 (Rs 5 per share)  -  -  -  -  (226,365)  (226,365)

Excess of net capital acquired in
    Universal Aqua (Private) Limited  -  -  42,277  -  (42,277)  -

Issue of share capital to shareholders
    of Universal Aqua (Private) Limited
    under scheme of amalgamation  766  -  (766)  -  -  -

Total recognized income and expense
    for the year  -  -  -  -  1,140,552  1,140,552

Interim dividend (Rs 10 per share) for
    the year ended December 31, 2005  -  -  -  -  (453,496)  (453,496)

Balance as at December 31, 2005Balance as at December 31, 2005Balance as at December 31, 2005Balance as at December 31, 2005Balance as at December 31, 2005  453,496  249,527  -  280,000  880,359  1,863,382

Final dividend for the year ended
    December 31, 2005 (Rs 15 per share)  -  -  - - (680,244) (680,244)

Total recognized income and
    expense for the year  -  -  -  - 1,347,942 1,347,942

Balance as at December 31, 2006  453,496  249,527  - 280,000  1,548,057 2,531,080

STATEMENT OF RECOGNIZED INCOME AND EXPENSESSTATEMENT OF RECOGNIZED INCOME AND EXPENSESSTATEMENT OF RECOGNIZED INCOME AND EXPENSESSTATEMENT OF RECOGNIZED INCOME AND EXPENSESSTATEMENT OF RECOGNIZED INCOME AND EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

20062006200620062006 20052005200520052005

(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)

Acturial losses recognized directly in equity  (23,612)  (19,044)
Tax on actuarial losses recognized directly in equity  8,264  6,665
Net profit for the year 1,363,290  1,152,931

Total recognized income and expense for the year  1,347,942  1,140,552

The annexed notes from 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financial statements.

RAYMOND FRANKERAYMOND FRANKERAYMOND FRANKERAYMOND FRANKERAYMOND FRANKE ROLAND DECORVETROLAND DECORVETROLAND DECORVETROLAND DECORVETROLAND DECORVET   SYED YAWAR ALI  SYED YAWAR ALI  SYED YAWAR ALI  SYED YAWAR ALI  SYED YAWAR ALI
Head of Finance & Control Chief Executive Chairman
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1.1.1.1.1. Legal status and nature of businessLegal status and nature of businessLegal status and nature of businessLegal status and nature of businessLegal status and nature of business

Nestlé Pakistan Limited ("the Company")  is a public limited company incorporated in Pakistan
and its shares are quoted on the Karachi and Lahore Stock Exchanges. The principal activity
of the Company is manufacturing, processing and sale of food products (dairy, confectionery,
culinary, coffee, beverages and drinking water). Registered office of the Company is situated
at Babar Ali Foundation Building, 308-Upper Mall, Lahore.

2.2.2.2.2. Summary of significant accounting policiesSummary of significant accounting policiesSummary of significant accounting policiesSummary of significant accounting policiesSummary of significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies adopted in preparation of financial statements are set out below.

2.12.12.12.12.1 Basis of preparation and statement of complianceBasis of preparation and statement of complianceBasis of preparation and statement of complianceBasis of preparation and statement of complianceBasis of preparation and statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting
standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Ordinance,
1984. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Accounting
Standards as notified under the provisions of the Companies Ordinance, 1984. Wherever
the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 or directives issued by the Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) differ with the requirements of these
standards, requirements of Companies Ordinance, 1984 or requirements of the said
directives take precedence.

2.22.22.22.22.2 Accounting conventionAccounting conventionAccounting conventionAccounting conventionAccounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for revaluation of certain financial instruments at fair value, recognition of certain
employee benefits at present value and recognition of certain property, plant and
equipment at recoverable amount.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards
requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions and judgements are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision
to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision effects only that period, or in the period of revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods. The areas where various assumptions
and estimates are significant to Company's financial statements or where judgements
were exercised in application of accounting policies are as follows:

- Useful life of depreciable assets
- Staff retirement benefits
- Taxation
- Provisions and contingencies

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 20062006200620062006
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2.32.32.32.32.3 TaxationTaxationTaxationTaxationTaxation

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax.

CurrentCurrentCurrentCurrentCurrent

Provision of current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in
accordance with the prevailing law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax is
calculated using prevailing tax rates or tax rates expected to apply to the profit for the
year if enacted after taking into account tax credits, rebates and exemptions, if any. The
charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision
for tax made in previous years arising from assessments framed during the year for
such years.

DeferredDeferredDeferredDeferredDeferred

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all
temporary differences arising from differences between the carrying amount of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of the taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated at the rates that are expected to apply
to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except in the case of
items credited or charged to equity in which case it is included in equity.

2.42.42.42.42.4 Retirement and other benefitsRetirement and other benefitsRetirement and other benefitsRetirement and other benefitsRetirement and other benefits

Defined benefit planDefined benefit planDefined benefit planDefined benefit planDefined benefit plan

The Company operates an approved funded defined benefit pension plan for its
management staff, excluding expatriates, and an approved funded defined benefit gratuity
plan for all employees, excluding expatriates, having a service period of more than one
year. Provisions are made in the financial statements to cover obligations on the basis
of actuarial valuations carried out annually under the projected unit credit method.
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Change in accounting policyChange in accounting policyChange in accounting policyChange in accounting policyChange in accounting policy

During the year the accounting policy for recognition of actuarial gains/losses has
been changed in accordance with option allowed by the revised IAS 19 "Employee
Benefits∆. The actuarial gains and losses are now recognized in the period in which
they occur directly in shareholders' equity and presented in the statement of recognized
income and expenses. Previously actuarial gains/losses were recognized over the
expected future services of current members, to the extent that cumulative unrecognized
actuarial gain/loss exceed 10 percent of greater of opening balances of present value
of defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets. The change in accounting
policy has been recognized retrospectively and comparative statements have been
restated in accordance with the requirements of IAS-8 "Accounting policies, changes in
accounting estimates and errors". The change in accounting policy has the following
impact on these financial statements.

20062006200620062006 20052005200520052005

(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)

Profit and loss account for the year ended:
Decrease in cost of sale  2,824  2,461
Decrease in distribution and selling expenses  3,344  2,914
Decrease in administration expenses 1,263  1,101
Increase in income tax expense  (2,601)  (2,267)

Increase in profit from continuing operations  4,830  4,209

Recognised income and expense for the year ended:
(Decrease) in net income recognised directly in equity (23,612)  (19,044)
Increase in income tax on income and expense
  recognised directly in equity  8,264  6,665
Increase in profit for the year  4,830  4,209
(Decrease) in total recognised income and
  expense for the period  (10,518)  (8,170)

Balance sheet at December 31:
Cumulative increase in liability for employee benefits 167,711  144,099
Cumulative increase in income tax recoverable  58,699  50,435
Cumulative decrease in retained earnings  109,012  93,664

The change in accounting policy has no material impact on earnings per share for the
current and previous periods.

Defined contribution planDefined contribution planDefined contribution planDefined contribution planDefined contribution plan

The Company operates a recognized provident fund for all its regular employees,
excluding expatriates. Equal monthly contributions are made to the fund both by the
Company and the employees at the rate of 12% of the basic salary plus cost of living
allowance. Obligation for contributions to defined contribution plan is recognized as an
expense in the profit and loss account as and when incurred.
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Other benefitsOther benefitsOther benefitsOther benefitsOther benefits

The Company was operating a defined contributory gratuity scheme for staff of former
Universal Aqua (Private) Limited. Monthly contributions were made by the Company
at the rate of 8.33% of the basic salary plus cost of living allowance for management
staff and 8.33% of the gross salary for non management staff. However, this obligation
was fully settled during the year and these employees were made member of the
defined benefit plans and the defined contribution plan.

2.52.52.52.52.5 Fixed capital expenditure and depreciation/amortizationFixed capital expenditure and depreciation/amortizationFixed capital expenditure and depreciation/amortizationFixed capital expenditure and depreciation/amortizationFixed capital expenditure and depreciation/amortization

Property, plant and equipmentProperty, plant and equipmentProperty, plant and equipmentProperty, plant and equipmentProperty, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, except freehold land, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Freehold land is stated at cost or deemed cost
less identified impairment loss, if any. Cost in relation to self constructed assets includes
direct cost of material, labour and applicable manufacturing overheads.

Depreciation is charged to income on the straight line method whereby cost of an asset
is written off over its estimated useful life at the rates given in note 14.1.

Residual value and the useful life of an asset are reviewed at least at each financial year
end.

Depreciation on additions is charged on a pro-rata basis from the month of use, while
for disposals depreciation is charged up to the month of disposal. Where an impairment
loss is recognized, the depreciation charge is adjusted in the future periods to allocate
the assets revised carrying amount over its estimated useful life.

Maintenance and repairs are charged to income as and when incurred. Major renewals
and improvements are capitalized and the assets so replaced, if any, are retired.  Gains
and losses on disposals of assets are included in income.

Capital work-in-progressCapital work-in-progressCapital work-in-progressCapital work-in-progressCapital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less identified impairment loss, if any.

Intangible assetsIntangible assetsIntangible assetsIntangible assetsIntangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment
loss, if any. These are amortized using the straight line method at the rates given in
note 17. Amortization on additions is charged on a pro-rata basis from the month of
use, while for disposals amortization is charged upto the month of disposal.

Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets is capitalized only when it increases the
future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other
expenditures are charged to income as and when incurred.
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2.62.62.62.62.6 LeasesLeasesLeasesLeasesLeases

Operating leasesOperating leasesOperating leasesOperating leasesOperating leases

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained
by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the income statement on
a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Finance leasesFinance leasesFinance leasesFinance leasesFinance leases

Leases in terms of which the Company has substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Assets subject to finance lease are stated at
the lower of present value of minimum lease payments under the lease agreements
and the fair value of the assets, less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if
any.

The related rental obligations, net of finance costs are classified as current and long
term depending upon the timing of the payment.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance costs so as to achieve
a constant rate on the balance outstanding. The interest element of the rental is charged
to income over the lease term.

Assets acquired under a finance lease are depreciated over the estimated useful life of
the asset on a straight-line method at the rates given in note 15.1. Depreciation of
leased assets is charged to income.

Residual value and the useful life of an asset are reviewed at least at each financial year
end.

Depreciation on additions to leased assets is charged from the month in which an asset
is acquired while no depreciation is charged for the month in which the asset is disposed
off.

2.72.72.72.72.7 Impairment lossesImpairment lossesImpairment lossesImpairment lossesImpairment losses

Financial assetsFinancial assetsFinancial assetsFinancial assetsFinancial assets

A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicate that one or
more events had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flow of that asset.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is calculated
as a difference between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate. An impairment loss
in respect of an available-for-sale financial asset is calculated by referance to its current
fair value.
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Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis.
The remaining financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar
credit risk characteristics.

Non financial assetsNon financial assetsNon financial assetsNon financial assetsNon financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets, other than biological
assets, investment property, inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. For goodwill and
intangible assets that have indefinite lives or that are not yet available for use, recoverable
amount is estimated at each reporting date.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable
asset group that generates cash flows that largely are independent from other assets
and groups.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit and loss. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other
assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis.

2.82.82.82.82.8 Financial liabilitiesFinancial liabilitiesFinancial liabilitiesFinancial liabilitiesFinancial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified according to substance of contractual arrangements
entered into. Significant financial liabilities include long term payables, borrowings,
trade and other payables.

Interest bearing borrowingsInterest bearing borrowingsInterest bearing borrowingsInterest bearing borrowingsInterest bearing borrowings

Interest bearing borrowings are recognized initially at fair value less attributable
transaction cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, these are stated at amortized cost
with any difference between cost and redemption value being recognized  in the profit
and loss over the period of the borrowings on an effective interest basis.

Other financial liabilitiesOther financial liabilitiesOther financial liabilitiesOther financial liabilitiesOther financial liabilities

All other financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value plus directly attributable
cost, if any, and subsequently at amortized cost using effective interest rate method.

2.92.92.92.92.9 Trade and other payablesTrade and other payablesTrade and other payablesTrade and other payablesTrade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently at
amortized cost using effective interest rate methods.
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2.102.102.102.102.10 ProvisionsProvisionsProvisionsProvisionsProvisions

Provisions are recognized in the balance sheet when the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the
amount can be made. However, provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date
and adjusted to reflect current best estimate.

2.112.112.112.112.11 DividendDividendDividendDividendDividend

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognized as a liability in the
Company's financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved.

2.122.122.122.122.12 InventoriesInventoriesInventoriesInventoriesInventories

Inventories, except for stock in transit, is stated at lower of cost and net realizable value.
Cost is determined as follows:

Store and sparesStore and sparesStore and sparesStore and sparesStore and spares

Useable stores and spares are valued principally at moving average cost, while items
considered obsolete are carried at nil value. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising
invoice value plus other charges paid thereon.

Stock in tradeStock in tradeStock in tradeStock in tradeStock in trade

Cost of finished goods, both manufactured and purchased, is determined on weighted
average basis. Cost in relation to work-in-process and finished goods includes an
appropriate portion of production overheads.

Stock in transit is valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid
thereon.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in ordinary course of business less
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

Raw and packing materialRaw and packing materialRaw and packing materialRaw and packing materialRaw and packing material

Cost in relation to raw and packing materials is arrived at on FIFO basis.

2.132.132.132.132.13 Trade debts and other receivablesTrade debts and other receivablesTrade debts and other receivablesTrade debts and other receivablesTrade debts and other receivables

Trade debts and other receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortized cost less impairment loss, if any. A provision for impairment of
trade and other receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the
Company will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of
receivables.



1616161616

2.142.142.142.142.14 Revenue recognitionRevenue recognitionRevenue recognitionRevenue recognitionRevenue recognition

Revenue represents the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for goods
sold, net of discounts and sales tax. Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company and the
amount of revenue, and the associated cost incurred, or to be incurred,  can be measured
reliably.

Sales of products and services are recorded when the risks and rewards are transferred
i.e. on dispatch of goods/products to customers or performance of services.

Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis by reference to the principal
outstanding and the applicable rate of return.

2.152.152.152.152.15 Foreign currenciesForeign currenciesForeign currenciesForeign currenciesForeign currencies

All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into rupees at
exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Transactions in foreign currencies
are translated into rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the date of transaction. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated into rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the date of transaction.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency that are stated at
fair value are translated into rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the date when fair
values are determined. Exchange gains and losses are included in the income currently.

2.162.162.162.162.16 Finance costFinance costFinance costFinance costFinance cost

Mark-up, interest and other charges on borrowings are recognized as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred. The accounting policy for finance cost has been
changed during the year in accordance with the option allowed by IAS 23 "Borrowing
Cost". Previously mark-up, interest and other charges on long term borrowings were
capitalized upto the date of commissioning of the related qualifying assets, acquired
out of the proceeds of such long term borrowings. This change in accounting policy
has no impact on the current and prior period financial statements as the qualifiying
assets capitalised in the initial years of the Company's formation have since been fully
depreciated.

2.172.172.172.172.17 Segment reportingSegment reportingSegment reportingSegment reportingSegment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Company that is engaged either in
providing products or services (business segment), or in providing products or services
within a particular economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject to
risk and rewards that are different from other segments.
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2.182.182.182.182.18 Financial instrumentsFinancial instrumentsFinancial instrumentsFinancial instrumentsFinancial instruments

All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are de-recognized
when the Company loses control of the contractual right that comprise the financial
assets. Financial liabilities are de-recognized when they are extinguished i.e. when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss
on derecognition of the financial assets and financial liabilities is taken to profit and
loss account currently. The particular measurement methods adopted are disclosed in
the individual policy statements associated with each item.

2.192.192.192.192.19 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilitiesOffsetting of financial assets and financial liabilitiesOffsetting of financial assets and financial liabilitiesOffsetting of financial assets and financial liabilitiesOffsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized
amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

2.202.202.202.202.20 Cash and cash equivalentsCash and cash equivalentsCash and cash equivalentsCash and cash equivalentsCash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. Cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash in hand and demand deposits. Running finances that are
repayable on demand are included as component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of cash flow statement.

2.212.212.212.212.21 Related Party transactionsRelated Party transactionsRelated Party transactionsRelated Party transactionsRelated Party transactions

The Company enters into transactions with related parties on an arm's length basis.
Prices for transactions with related parties are determined using admissible valuation
methods, except in extremely rare circumstances where, subject to approval of the
Board of Directors, it is in the interest of the Company to do so.

2.222.222.222.222.22 Standards, interpretations and amendments to be published approved accountingStandards, interpretations and amendments to be published approved accountingStandards, interpretations and amendments to be published approved accountingStandards, interpretations and amendments to be published approved accountingStandards, interpretations and amendments to be published approved accounting

standards that are yet not effectivestandards that are yet not effectivestandards that are yet not effectivestandards that are yet not effectivestandards that are yet not effective

During the year International Accounting Standard Board has revised IAS-1, "Presentation
of Financial Statements". The amendments impose additional requirements for Capital
disclosures effective for financial period beginning on or after January 01, 2007.

Adoption of the above amendments would impact to the extent of disclosures only,
presented in the future financial statements of the Company.
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20062006200620062006 20052005200520052005

(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)

3.3.3.3.3. Issued, subscribed and paid up capitalIssued, subscribed and paid up capitalIssued, subscribed and paid up capitalIssued, subscribed and paid up capitalIssued, subscribed and paid up capital

29,787,058 (2005: 29,787,058) ordinary shares
   of Rs 10 each as fully paid in cash  297,870  297,870
15,476,867 (2005: 15,476,867) ordinary shares of
   Rs 10 each as fully paid bonus shares  154,769  154,769
85,659 (2005: 85,659) ordinary shares of Rs 10 each
   issued for consideration other than cash  857  857

453,496  453,496

As at December 31, 2006, Nestlé S.A. Switzerland, the holding company, holds 26,778,229
(2005: 26,778,229) ordinary shares of the Company. In addition  9,169,217 (2005: 9,163,617)
ordinary shares are held by the following related parties at December 31, 2006:

20062006200620062006 20052005200520052005

(Number of shares)(Number of shares)(Number of shares)(Number of shares)(Number of shares)

Name of related parties:Name of related parties:Name of related parties:Name of related parties:Name of related parties:

Packages LimitedPackages LimitedPackages LimitedPackages LimitedPackages Limited  3,649,248  3,649,248
Percentage of equity held 8.0% (2005: 8.0%)

International General Insurance Company of Pakistan LimitedInternational General Insurance Company of Pakistan LimitedInternational General Insurance Company of Pakistan LimitedInternational General Insurance Company of Pakistan LimitedInternational General Insurance Company of Pakistan Limited 4,304,797  4,299,197
Percentage of equity held 9.5% (2005: 9.5%)

Zarai Taraqiati Bank LimitedZarai Taraqiati Bank LimitedZarai Taraqiati Bank LimitedZarai Taraqiati Bank LimitedZarai Taraqiati Bank Limited  430,551  430,551
Percentage of equity held 1.0% (2005: 1.0%)

Industrial Technical and Educational InstitutionIndustrial Technical and Educational InstitutionIndustrial Technical and Educational InstitutionIndustrial Technical and Educational InstitutionIndustrial Technical and Educational Institution  21,666  21,666
Percentage of equity held 0.05% (2005: 0.05%)

Gurmani FoundationGurmani FoundationGurmani FoundationGurmani FoundationGurmani Foundation  762,955  762,955
Percentage of equity held 1.7% (2005: 1.7%)

9,169,217  9,163,617

4.4.4.4.4. Share premiumShare premiumShare premiumShare premiumShare premium

This reserve can be utilized by the Company only for the purposes specified in section 83(2)
of the Companies Ordinance, 1984.
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20062006200620062006 20052005200520052005

NoteNoteNoteNoteNote (Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)

5.5.5.5.5. Long term financesLong term financesLong term financesLong term financesLong term finances

Long term finances utilized under mark up arrangements:

Banking companies - securedBanking companies - securedBanking companies - securedBanking companies - securedBanking companies - secured
Finance 1 5.1  -  300,000
Finance 2 5.1  -  200,000
Finance 3 5.1  -  200,000
Finance 4 5.1  -  150,000
Finance 5 5.2  150,000  150,000
Finance 6 5.1  -  300,000
Finance 7 5.3  150,000  150,000

 300,000  1,450,000

Related party - UnsecuredRelated party - UnsecuredRelated party - UnsecuredRelated party - UnsecuredRelated party - Unsecured

Associated company - Foreign currency 5.4  3,963,700  896,850

 4,263,700  2,346,850
Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities (300,000)  (400,000)

 3,963,700  1,946,850

Terms of repayment and securitiesTerms of repayment and securitiesTerms of repayment and securitiesTerms of repayment and securitiesTerms of repayment and securities

5.15.15.15.15.1 Finance 1, 2, 3, 4 and 6Finance 1, 2, 3, 4 and 6Finance 1, 2, 3, 4 and 6Finance 1, 2, 3, 4 and 6Finance 1, 2, 3, 4 and 6

These finances have been repaid during the year.

5.25.25.25.25.2 Finance 5Finance 5Finance 5Finance 5Finance 5

Finance 5 is redeemable in one installment due in December 2007. Mark-up is
payable quarterly at three months average KIBOR plus 20 basis points. In case of
default , liquidated damages at the rate of 4% per annum are payable.

5.35.35.35.35.3 Finance 7Finance 7Finance 7Finance 7Finance 7

Finance 7 is redeemable in one installment due in December 2007. Mark-up is
payable quarterly at three months average KIBOR plus 15 basis points. In case of
default , liquidated damages at the rate of 4% per annum are payable.

SecuritySecuritySecuritySecuritySecurity

All above finances are secured by a first pari passu hypothecation charge over fixed assets
(property, plant and equipment) of the Company excluding land and building.

5.45.45.45.45.4 Associated company - Foreign currencyAssociated company - Foreign currencyAssociated company - Foreign currencyAssociated company - Foreign currencyAssociated company - Foreign currency

This represents US$ 65 million foreign currency loan from associated company. US$ 15
million is due in December 2010 and US$ 50 million due in May 2011. Mark-up is
payable semi annually at six months average LIBOR plus 150 basis points.
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20062006200620062006 20052005200520052005

NoteNoteNoteNoteNote (Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)

6.6.6.6.6. Deferred taxationDeferred taxationDeferred taxationDeferred taxationDeferred taxation

This is composed of:

Liability for deferred taxation comprising
    temporary differences related to:

Accelerated tax depreciation  1,191,055  449,442
Others  (248,197)  (5,028)

942,858  444,414

7.7.7.7.7. Retirement and other benefitsRetirement and other benefitsRetirement and other benefitsRetirement and other benefitsRetirement and other benefits

Pension fund 7.1  99,965  127,765
Gratuity fund 7.1  134,340  88,119
Unfunded gratuity 7.12  -  2,984

 234,305  218,868

7.17.17.17.17.1 Present value of funded obligationsPresent value of funded obligationsPresent value of funded obligationsPresent value of funded obligationsPresent value of funded obligations

GratuityGratuityGratuityGratuityGratuity PensionPensionPensionPensionPension

20062006200620062006 20052005200520052005 20062006200620062006 20052005200520052005

RestatedRestatedRestatedRestatedRestated RestatedRestatedRestatedRestatedRestated

  (Rupees in thousands)  (Rupees in thousands)  (Rupees in thousands)  (Rupees in thousands)  (Rupees in thousands)

The amounts recognized in the balance sheet are as follows:

Present value of defined benefit obligation  286,258  227,662  377,539  349,904

Fair value of plan assets  (151,918)  (139,543)  (277,574)  (222,139)

Total employee benefit obligation  134,340  88,119  99,965  127,765

7.27.27.27.27.2 Movement in net obligationMovement in net obligationMovement in net obligationMovement in net obligationMovement in net obligation

Net liability as at January 01  88,119  69,091  127,765  130,012
Charge to profit and loss account  31,634  15,988  25,187  23,965
Actuarial (gains)/losses recognised in equity  48,224  26,384  (24,612)  (7,340)
Contribution made by the employees  -  -  11,405  8,740
Contribution by the Company  (33,637)  (23,344)  (39,780)  (27,612)

 134,340  88,119  99,965  127,765

7.37.37.37.37.3 Movement in the liability for fundedMovement in the liability for fundedMovement in the liability for fundedMovement in the liability for fundedMovement in the liability for funded

defined benefit obligationsdefined benefit obligationsdefined benefit obligationsdefined benefit obligationsdefined benefit obligations

Liability for defined benefit obligations
   at January 01  227,662  173,099  349,904  300,347
Benefits paid by the plan  (10,313)  (5,247)  (7,471)  (5,558)
Current service costs and interest  51,170  30,549  67,691  53,734
Actuarial (gains)/losses recognised in equity  17,739  29,261  (32,585)  1,381
Liability for defined benefit obligations
   at December 31  286,258  227,662  377,539  349,904
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GratuityGratuityGratuityGratuityGratuity PensionPensionPensionPensionPension

20062006200620062006 20052005200520052005 20062006200620062006 20052005200520052005

RestatedRestatedRestatedRestatedRestated RestatedRestatedRestatedRestatedRestated

  (Rupees in thousands)  (Rupees in thousands)  (Rupees in thousands)  (Rupees in thousands)  (Rupees in thousands)

7.47.47.47.47.4 Movement in fair value of plan assetsMovement in fair value of plan assetsMovement in fair value of plan assetsMovement in fair value of plan assetsMovement in fair value of plan assets

Fair value of plan assets as at January 01  139,543  104,008  222,139  167,863
Contributions paid into the plan  33,637  23,344  39,780  27,612
Benefits paid by the plan  (10,313)  (5,247)  (7,471)  (5,558)
Expected return on plan assets  19,536  14,561  31,099  23,501
Actuarial (losses)/gains recognised in equity  (30,485)  2,877  (7,973)  8,721

Fair value of plan assets as at December 31  151,918  139,543  277,574  222,139

7.57.57.57.57.5 Plan assets consist of the following:Plan assets consist of the following:Plan assets consist of the following:Plan assets consist of the following:Plan assets consist of the following:

Equity instruments  27,052  33,406  138,045  80,396
Debt instruments  79,260  91,594  113,580  128,907
Cash and other deposits  45,606  14,543  25,949  12,836

 151,918  139,543  277,574  222,139

7.67.67.67.67.6 Salaries, wages, amenities and other benefitsSalaries, wages, amenities and other benefitsSalaries, wages, amenities and other benefitsSalaries, wages, amenities and other benefitsSalaries, wages, amenities and other benefits

include the following in respect of retirementinclude the following in respect of retirementinclude the following in respect of retirementinclude the following in respect of retirementinclude the following in respect of retirement

and other benefits:and other benefits:and other benefits:and other benefits:and other benefits:

Interest cost for the year  20,490  13,848  31,491  24,028
Current service cost  30,680  16,701  36,200  29,706
Expected return on plan assets  (19,536)  (14,561)  (31,099)  (23,501)
Amortization of non vested past service cost  -  -  -  2,472
Contribution made by the employees  -  -  (11,405)  (8,740)

 31,634  15,988  25,187  23,965

7.77.77.77.77.7 Actual return on plan assetsActual return on plan assetsActual return on plan assetsActual return on plan assetsActual return on plan assets  10,949  17,438  23,126  32,222

7.87.87.87.87.8 Actuarial gains and losses recognisedActuarial gains and losses recognisedActuarial gains and losses recognisedActuarial gains and losses recognisedActuarial gains and losses recognised

directly in equitydirectly in equitydirectly in equitydirectly in equitydirectly in equity

Cumulative amount at January 01  (70,026)  (43,642)  (80,549)  (87,889)
Gain/(loss) recognised during the period  (48,224)  (26,384)  24,612  7,340

Cumulative amount at December 31  (118,250)  (70,026)  (55,937)  (80,549)
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7.97.97.97.97.9 Historical Information for Gratuity planHistorical Information for Gratuity planHistorical Information for Gratuity planHistorical Information for Gratuity planHistorical Information for Gratuity plan

20062006200620062006 20052005200520052005 20042004200420042004 20032003200320032003 20022002200220022002

                (                (                (                (                (R u p e e s  i n  t h o u s a n d )R u p e e s  i n  t h o u s a n d )R u p e e s  i n  t h o u s a n d )R u p e e s  i n  t h o u s a n d )R u p e e s  i n  t h o u s a n d )

Present value of defined
  benefit obligation  286,258  227,662  173,099  142,049  117,568
Fair value of the plan assets  151,918  139,543  104,008  85,374  63,530

Deficit in the plan  134,340  88,119  69,091  56,675  54,038

Experience adjustment
  arising on plan liabilities  (17,739)  (29,261)  (12,760)  (7,662)  (3,635)
Experience adjustments
  arising on plan assets  (30,485)  2,877  1,013  2,868  1,227

The Company expects to pay Rs 31.553 million in contributions to defined gratuity plan in 2007.

7.107.107.107.107.10 Historical Information for Pension planHistorical Information for Pension planHistorical Information for Pension planHistorical Information for Pension planHistorical Information for Pension plan

20062006200620062006 20052005200520052005 20042004200420042004 20032003200320032003 20022002200220022002

                (                (                (                (                (R u p e e s  i n  t h o u s a n d )R u p e e s  i n  t h o u s a n d )R u p e e s  i n  t h o u s a n d )R u p e e s  i n  t h o u s a n d )R u p e e s  i n  t h o u s a n d )

Present value of defined
  benefit obligation  377,539  349,904  300,347  246,177  158,307
Fair value of the plan assets  277,574  222,139  167,893  133,404  96,137

Deficit in the plan  99,965  127,765  132,454  112,773  62,170

Experience adjustment
  arising on plan liabilities  (14,782)  (36,869)  (14,641)  (10,155)  (4,763)
Experience adjustments
  arising on plan assets  (7,973)  8,721  6,375  9,410  1,185

The Company expects to pay Rs 41.010 million in contributions to defined pension plan in 2007.

7.117.117.117.117.11 Significant actuarial assumptions used for valuation of these plans are as follows:

20062006200620062006 20052005200520052005
Gratuity fundGratuity fundGratuity fundGratuity fundGratuity fund Pension fundPension fundPension fundPension fundPension fund Gratuity fundGratuity fundGratuity fundGratuity fundGratuity fund Pension fundPension fundPension fundPension fundPension fund
per annumper annumper annumper annumper annum per annumper annumper annumper annumper annum per annumper annumper annumper annumper annum per annumper annumper annumper annumper annum

Discount Rate 10% 10% 9% 9%
Expected rates of salary
  increase 10% 10% 9% 9%
Expected rates of return on
  plan assets 14% 14% 14% 14%
Average expected remaining
  working life 12 12 13 12

20062006200620062006 20052005200520052005

(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)

7.127.127.127.127.12 Unfunded gratuityUnfunded gratuityUnfunded gratuityUnfunded gratuityUnfunded gratuity

Opening balance  2,984  2,715
Charge for the year  -  1,183
Payments during the year  (2,984)  (914)

Closing balance  -  2,984
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20062006200620062006 20052005200520052005

(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)

8.8.8.8.8. Liabilities against assets subject to finance leaseLiabilities against assets subject to finance leaseLiabilities against assets subject to finance leaseLiabilities against assets subject to finance leaseLiabilities against assets subject to finance lease

Present value of minimum lease payments  39,863  31
Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities  (8,392)  (31)

31,471  -

The lease has been obtained from The Bank of Punjab under Kissan Dost Livestock Development
Scheme. As per the terms of agreement the finance cost will be paid by, Pakistan Dairy
Developments Company (PDDC). The interest rate is average 6 months KIBOR plus 100 basis
points with a floor of 10% per annum.

The amount of future payments of the lease and the period in which these payments will
become due are as follows:

20062006200620062006 20052005200520052005

MinimumMinimumMinimumMinimumMinimum MinimumMinimumMinimumMinimumMinimum

leaseleaseleaseleaselease FinanceFinanceFinanceFinanceFinance leaseleaseleaseleaselease FinanceFinanceFinanceFinanceFinance

YearsYearsYearsYearsYears paymentpaymentpaymentpaymentpayment costcostcostcostcost PrincipalPrincipalPrincipalPrincipalPrincipal paymentpaymentpaymentpaymentpayment costcostcostcostcost PrincipalPrincipalPrincipalPrincipalPrincipal

( R u p e e s( R u p e e s( R u p e e s( R u p e e s( R u p e e s                i n  i n  i n  i n  i n       t h o u s a n d t h o u s a n d t h o u s a n d t h o u s a n d t h o u s a n d s s s s s ) ) ) ) )

Not later than
  one year  8,392  -  8,392 32 1 31
Later than one
  year but not later
  than five years  31,471  -  31,471  -  -  -

 39,863  -  39,863 32 1 31

9.9.9.9.9. Short term borrowings - securedShort term borrowings - securedShort term borrowings - securedShort term borrowings - securedShort term borrowings - secured

This represents money market loans obtained from commercial banks, which carry mark-up
of 9.81% to 10.18% per annum (2005: 8.80% per annum). This loan is for a period of 30 days
(2005: 15 days) and is secured against pari passu hypothecation charge over current assets
of the Company.

10.10.10.10.10. Short term running finance under mark-up arrangements-securedShort term running finance under mark-up arrangements-securedShort term running finance under mark-up arrangements-securedShort term running finance under mark-up arrangements-securedShort term running finance under mark-up arrangements-secured

Short term running finances available from commercial banks under mark up arrangements
amount to Rs 2,700 million (2005: Rs 2,075 million). Mark up is charged at rates ranging from
7.5% to 11.28 % per annum (2005: 7.7% to 10.69% per annum).

These running finances under mark up arrangements are secured by hypothecation charge of
fixed assets, stores, stocks and assignment of receivables.
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20062006200620062006 20052005200520052005

NoteNoteNoteNoteNote (Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)

11.11.11.11.11. Trade and other payablesTrade and other payablesTrade and other payablesTrade and other payablesTrade and other payables

Trade creditors
Related parties - associated companies 62,946  176,040
Others  516,258  246,760

 579,204  422,800
Accrued liabilities
Related parties - associated companies 95,088  85,976
Others  1,184,435  1,045,371

 1,279,523  1,131,347
Excise duty payable  9,515  9,101
Sales tax payable  -  9,085
Advances from customers 56,525  455,992
Workers' profit participation fund 11.1  45,138  60,909
Workers' welfare fund  99,986  11,051
Royalty and technical assistance fee payable
   to holding company 49,415  29,296
Unclaimed dividend 2,949  1,979
Withholding tax payable 20,965  3,044
Employees benefits payable -  4,299
Others  54,309  49,499

 2,197,529  2,188,402

11.111.111.111.111.1 Workers' profit participation fundWorkers' profit participation fundWorkers' profit participation fundWorkers' profit participation fundWorkers' profit participation fund

Opening balance  60,909  3,684
Provision for the year 29  107,703  86,974
Interest for the year 28  1,563  -

 170,175  90,658
Less: Payments during the year  (125,037)  (29,749)

Closing balance  45,138  60,909

12.12.12.12.12. Interest and mark-up accruedInterest and mark-up accruedInterest and mark-up accruedInterest and mark-up accruedInterest and mark-up accrued

Interest and mark-up on:

Short term borrowings and short term
   running finance - secured 31,888  13,290
Long term finances - secured 11,867  31,196
Long term loan from associated company - unsecured 54,794  772

 98,549  45,258
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13.13.13.13.13. Contingencies and commitmentsContingencies and commitmentsContingencies and commitmentsContingencies and commitmentsContingencies and commitments

13.113.113.113.113.1 In 2002, Shaheed Zulfiqar Ali Bhutto Institute of Science and Technology (SZABIST)
filed a petition against the Government of Sindh challenging cancellation of its allotment
of 300 acres of land in the Deh Chur allotted to it earlier and later made the Company
a party to the suit, claiming that the land that the Company had acquired was a part of
its cancelled land.

The Company contested the SZABIST claim on the grounds that land acquired by the
Company could not be claimed by SZABIST since (a) SZABIST did not have the area
demarcated as per regulations after it was allotted to it (b) it did not take official
possession of the land, and (c) the land was cancelled by operation of law and hence
it was only a dispute between SZABIST and the Government of Sindh. The Court
agreed and directed the Government of Sindh to conduct a survey and set aside 300
acres of land for SZABIST in Deh Chur in case its claim is finally accepted by the
Court. As such it is the management's view that the Company is likely to be discharged
as a party to the suit as soon the 300 acres are earmarked by Sindh Government in
Deh Chur. Furthermore, the legal advisor of the Company is of the opinion that at
present no liability on the Company is likely to arise subject to final adjudication of the
SZABIST petition.

13.213.213.213.213.2 In the suit for declaration, permanent injunction and cancellation of document filed in
the Sindh High Court, Karachi by Sindh Institute of Urology and Transplantation, SZABIST
and Agha  Khan University vs. Nestle Pakistan Ltd, Government of Sindh, Land Utilization
Department, Karachi, Environment Protection Agency and CDGK; parties to the suit
have agreed to reach a compromise according to which Nestle Pakistan Limited shall
not set up an industrial plant in Deh Chur, Gadap Town Karachi. With the signing of the
compromise document, the pending litigation in the Sindh High Court shall be
concluded. The management has decided to sell the 20 acres land in Deh Chur, upon
conclusion of the litigation.

13.313.313.313.313.3 Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts Rs 35.946 million (2005:
Rs 69.208 million).

20062006200620062006 20052005200520052005

(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)

13.413.413.413.413.4 GuaranteesGuaranteesGuaranteesGuaranteesGuarantees

Outstanding guarantees  219,933  86,180

Un-utilized portion  30,067  61,304

13.513.513.513.513.5 Commitments in respect of capital expenditure  347,289 1,016,917

13.613.613.613.613.6 Letters of creditLetters of creditLetters of creditLetters of creditLetters of credit

Outstanding letters of credit in respect of
  capital expenditures  33,572 218,657

Other outstanding letters of credit  253,366 19,102

Unutilized portion  1,703,062  1,867,241
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13.713.713.713.713.7 In the year 2005 the Company had made a commitment to pay Rs 250 million to
Lahore University of Management Sciences to set up a School for Science and
Engineering. The amount is to be paid over a period of six years. Upto December 31,
2006 Rs 100 million (2005: Rs 50 million) has been paid.

14.14.14.14.14. Property, plant and equipmentProperty, plant and equipmentProperty, plant and equipmentProperty, plant and equipmentProperty, plant and equipment

14.114.114.114.114.1 The statement of the property, plant and equipment is as follows:

AccumulatedAccumulatedAccumulatedAccumulatedAccumulated DepreciationDepreciationDepreciationDepreciationDepreciation AccumulatedAccumulatedAccumulatedAccumulatedAccumulated

AcquisitionAcquisitionAcquisitionAcquisitionAcquisition depreciationdepreciationdepreciationdepreciationdepreciation AcquisitionAcquisitionAcquisitionAcquisitionAcquisition chargechargechargechargecharge depreciationdepreciationdepreciationdepreciationdepreciation Net bookNet bookNet bookNet bookNet book

Cost as atCost as atCost as atCost as atCost as at throughthroughthroughthroughthrough Cost as atCost as atCost as atCost as atCost as at as atas atas atas atas at throughthroughthroughthroughthrough for thefor thefor thefor thefor the ImpairmentImpairmentImpairmentImpairmentImpairment as atas atas atas atas at value as atvalue as atvalue as atvalue as atvalue as at Depre-Depre-Depre-Depre-Depre-

JanuaryJanuaryJanuaryJanuaryJanuary businessbusinessbusinessbusinessbusiness Reclassi-Reclassi-Reclassi-Reclassi-Reclassi- Additions/Additions/Additions/Additions/Additions/ DecemberDecemberDecemberDecemberDecember JanuaryJanuaryJanuaryJanuaryJanuary businessbusinessbusinessbusinessbusiness    Reclassi-   Reclassi-   Reclassi-   Reclassi-   Reclassi- year/year/year/year/year/ charge/charge/charge/charge/charge/ DecemberDecemberDecemberDecemberDecember  December December December December December ciationciationciationciationciation

0101010101 combinationcombinationcombinationcombinationcombination ficationficationficationficationfication (Disposals)(Disposals)(Disposals)(Disposals)(Disposals) TransferTransferTransferTransferTransfer 3131313131 0101010101 combinationcombinationcombinationcombinationcombination    fication   fication   fication   fication   fication (Disposals)(Disposals)(Disposals)(Disposals)(Disposals) TransferTransferTransferTransferTransfer (reversal)(reversal)(reversal)(reversal)(reversal) 3131313131 3131313131 rate %rate %rate %rate %rate %

( R u p e e s  i n  t h o u s a n d s )( R u p e e s  i n  t h o u s a n d s )( R u p e e s  i n  t h o u s a n d s )( R u p e e s  i n  t h o u s a n d s )( R u p e e s  i n  t h o u s a n d s )

Freehold land  21,650  -  -  34,037  -  55,687  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  55,687 -

Leasehold land  32,347  -  -  -  -  32,347  1,658  -  2  366  -  -  2,026  30,321 1-6.67

Building on freehold land  694,821  -  -  671,191  -  1,366,012  204,186  -  -  28,577  -  -  232,763  1,133,249 2-4

Building on leasehold land  219,273  -  -  -  -  219,273  125,403  -  -  4,387  -  -  129,790  89,483 2-4

Plant and machinery  5,026,204  -  61  3,505,383  - 8,377,697  2,532,615  -  (11,002) 487,493  -  -  2,895,515  5,482,182 6.67-33

 (153,951)  (113,591)

Furniture and fixtures  85,359  -  (1,622)  17,623  -  98,862  42,350  -  10,834  12,239  -  -  63,002  35,860 10

 (2,498)  (2,421)

Vehicles  302,252  -  2,152  37,617  569  301,631  181,497  -  441  44,948  549  -  189,934  111,697 20

 (40,959)  (37,501)

Office equipment  13,006  -  (591)  -  -  12,209  8,323  -  (275)  1,505  -  -  9,356  2,853 20

 (206)  (197)

2006  6,394,912  -  - 4,265,851  569  10,463,718  3,096,032  -  -  579,515  549  -  3,522,386  6,941,332

 (197,614)  (153,710)

2005  4,869,087  59,810  -  1,589,204 -  6,394,912  2,517,806  17,315  -  515,959  -  158,430  3,096,032  3,298,880

 (123,189)  (113,478)

14.214.214.214.214.2 ReclassificationReclassificationReclassificationReclassificationReclassification

Reclassifications represent adjustments made during the year after an extensive review
of plant and equipment classifications carried out by the management.

20062006200620062006 20052005200520052005

NoteNoteNoteNoteNote (Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)

14.314.314.314.314.3 Depreciation charge for the year
  has been allocated as follows:

Cost of goods sold 25  451,734  407,695
Distribution and selling expenses:
    Own assets  90,239  69,700
    Leased assets  328  122

26  90,567  69,822
Administration expenses 27  37,217 38,564
Capitalized during the year 325 -

579,843 516,081
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14.414.414.414.414.4 Detail of certain property, plant and equipment sold during the year is as follows:

AccumulatedAccumulatedAccumulatedAccumulatedAccumulated BookBookBookBookBook SaleSaleSaleSaleSale Mode ofMode ofMode ofMode ofMode of

        Description        Description        Description        Description        Description CostCostCostCostCost depreciationdepreciationdepreciationdepreciationdepreciation valuevaluevaluevaluevalue proceedsproceedsproceedsproceedsproceeds  disposal disposal disposal disposal disposal  Sold to Sold to Sold to Sold to Sold to

                                              ( R u p e e s  i n  t h o u s a n d s ) ( R u p e e s  i n  t h o u s a n d s ) ( R u p e e s  i n  t h o u s a n d s ) ( R u p e e s  i n  t h o u s a n d s ) ( R u p e e s  i n  t h o u s a n d s )

Plant and machineryPlant and machineryPlant and machineryPlant and machineryPlant and machinery
 25,548  19,235  6,313  321 Negotiation Godown No. 48/4 Misri Shah Lahore.

 94  30  64  - Scrapped J. F Enterprises
 488  205  283  12 Scrapped J. F Enterprises
 458  350  108  12 Scrapped J. F Enterprises
 245  187  58  6 Scrapped J. F Enterprises
 716  242  474  18 Scrapped J. F Enterprises
 543  229  314  14 Scrapped J. F Enterprises

 26,301  2,849  23,452  23,670 Negotiation Tetra pack Limited
 799  87  712  720 Negotiation Tetra pack Limited

 12,924  12,470  454  2,677 Negotiation PT Nestlé Indonesia
 12,924  12,470  454  3,406 Negotiation PT Nestlé Indonesia

 7,130  2,032  5,098  3,296 Negotiation Nestle JMP Jamaica Ltd.
 1,020  282  738  471 Negotiation Nestle JMP Jamaica Ltd.

 136  23  113  3 Scrapped Ghulam Dustagheer
 389  291  98  11 Scrapped M. Din & Sons
 448  300  148  9 Scrapped M. Din & Sons
 448  300  148  9 Scrapped M. Din & Sons
 433  320  113  12 Scrapped M. Din & Sons

VehiclesVehiclesVehiclesVehiclesVehicles
 325  263  62  301 Negotiation Employee (Raheel Afzal)
 351  213  138  250 Negotiation Empoloyee (Shaista Umer)
 559  358  201  382 Negotiation Employee (Majid Ali)
 559  358  201  393 Negotiation Employee (Farhan Ali Zaidi)
 555  234  321  433 Negotiation Employee (Ahsan Shamim)
 590  439  151  412 Negotiation Employee (M. Nasir)
 553  486  67  355 Negotiation Employee (Azeem Siddiqi)
 564  200  364  516 Negotiation Employee (Shariq Mustafa)

 57  2  55  - Scrapped J. F Enterprises
 1,119  851  268  825 Insurance International General Insurance

claim   Co. of Pakistan Ltd.
 1,223  578  645  624 Negotiation Employee (Haseeb Aslam)

 938  538  400  508 Negotiation Employee (M. Zahid)
 731  506  225  650 Insurance International General Insurance

claim   Co. of Pakistan Ltd.

Items with bookItems with bookItems with bookItems with bookItems with book

value belowvalue belowvalue belowvalue belowvalue below

Rs 50,000Rs 50,000Rs 50,000Rs 50,000Rs 50,000  98,446  96,782  1,664  23,196

Total  197,614  153,710  43,904  63,512
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15.15.15.15.15. Assets subject to finance leaseAssets subject to finance leaseAssets subject to finance leaseAssets subject to finance leaseAssets subject to finance lease

15.115.115.115.115.1 The statement of assets subject to finance lease is as follows:

AccumulatedAccumulatedAccumulatedAccumulatedAccumulated

AcquisitionsAcquisitionsAcquisitionsAcquisitionsAcquisitions AccumulatedAccumulatedAccumulatedAccumulatedAccumulated AcquisitionsAcquisitionsAcquisitionsAcquisitionsAcquisitions depreciationdepreciationdepreciationdepreciationdepreciation  Net book Net book Net book Net book Net book

throughthroughthroughthroughthrough Cost as atCost as atCost as atCost as atCost as at depreciationdepreciationdepreciationdepreciationdepreciation throughthroughthroughthroughthrough DepreciationDepreciationDepreciationDepreciationDepreciation as atas atas atas atas at value as atvalue as atvalue as atvalue as atvalue as at Depre-Depre-Depre-Depre-Depre-

Cost as atCost as atCost as atCost as atCost as at businessbusinessbusinessbusinessbusiness Additions/Additions/Additions/Additions/Additions/ DecemberDecemberDecemberDecemberDecember as atas atas atas atas at businessbusinessbusinessbusinessbusiness for thefor thefor thefor thefor the DecemberDecemberDecemberDecemberDecember DecemberDecemberDecemberDecemberDecember ciationciationciationciationciation

January 01January 01January 01January 01January 01 combinationcombinationcombinationcombinationcombination (Transfers)(Transfers)(Transfers)(Transfers)(Transfers) 3131313131 January 01January 01January 01January 01January 01 combinationcombinationcombinationcombinationcombination yearyearyearyearyear TransfersTransfersTransfersTransfersTransfers 3131313131 3131313131 rate %rate %rate %rate %rate %

                    ( R u p e e s  i n  t h o u s a n d s )( R u p e e s  i n  t h o u s a n d s )( R u p e e s  i n  t h o u s a n d s )( R u p e e s  i n  t h o u s a n d s )( R u p e e s  i n  t h o u s a n d s )

Plant and
   machinery  -  -  45,045   45,045  -  -  328  -  328    44,717  6.67-20

Vehicles  569  -  -  -  549  - - -  -  -  20
      (569)  (549)

2006  569  -  45,045  45,045  549  -  328  328  44,717
      (569)  (549)

2005  -  569  -       569  -  427  122 -  549          20

20062006200620062006 20052005200520052005

NoteNoteNoteNoteNote (Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)

16.16.16.16.16. Capital work-in-progressCapital work-in-progressCapital work-in-progressCapital work-in-progressCapital work-in-progress

TangibleTangibleTangibleTangibleTangible
Civil works 376,738  305,211
Plant and machinery 16.1  625,333  1,463,993
Others 104,981  19,271

 1,107,052  1,788,475

16.116.116.116.116.1 This includes plant and machinery in transit
amounting to Rs 20.160 million
(2005: Rs 711.712 million).

17.17.17.17.17. Intangible assetsIntangible assetsIntangible assetsIntangible assetsIntangible assets

CostCostCostCostCost
Balance as at January 01 213,189  -
Additions -  213,189

Balance as at December 31 213,189  213,189

AmortizationAmortizationAmortizationAmortizationAmortization
Balance as at January 01 35,531  -
Charge for the year 42,638  35,531

Balance as at December 31 78,169  35,531

Net book value 135,020  177,658

Amortization rateAmortization rateAmortization rateAmortization rateAmortization rate 20% 20%

Intangible assets represent GLOBE software capitalized in 2005.
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20062006200620062006 20052005200520052005

NoteNoteNoteNoteNote (Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)

18.18.18.18.18. Long term loans and advancesLong term loans and advancesLong term loans and advancesLong term loans and advancesLong term loans and advances

To employees - secured and considered goodTo employees - secured and considered goodTo employees - secured and considered goodTo employees - secured and considered goodTo employees - secured and considered good

Executives 18.1  10,109  4,990
Other employees 38,089  29,875

 48,198  34,865

To suppliers - unsecured and considered goodTo suppliers - unsecured and considered goodTo suppliers - unsecured and considered goodTo suppliers - unsecured and considered goodTo suppliers - unsecured and considered good 18.2  26,581  16,450

 74,779  51,315
Less: current portion shown under current assets 8,771  3,624

 66,008  47,691

18.118.118.118.118.1 These represent long term interest free loans to employees for the purchase of cars
and motor cycles as per the Company policy and are repayable within a period of 5
years. Loans are secured by registration of vehicles in the name of the Company. None
of the loans is outstanding for period exceeding three years.

The maximum amount of loans and advances to executives outstanding at the end of
any month during the year was Rs 10.109 million (2005: Rs 4.990 million).

20062006200620062006 20052005200520052005

NoteNoteNoteNoteNote (Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)

Reconciliation of carrying amounts ofReconciliation of carrying amounts ofReconciliation of carrying amounts ofReconciliation of carrying amounts ofReconciliation of carrying amounts of

  loans to executives.  loans to executives.  loans to executives.  loans to executives.  loans to executives.

Opening balance  4,990  2,208
Disbursements during the year  3,250  2,226
Promotion of non-executive employees as executives  2,750  1,315
Loans recovered during the year  (881)  (759)

Closing balance  10,109  4,990

18.218.218.218.218.2 This carries mark-up at the rate of 1.5% per annum
(2005: 1.5% per annum).

19.19.19.19.19. Stores and sparesStores and sparesStores and sparesStores and sparesStores and spares

Stores  22,114  36,966
Spares, including in transit Rs 6.838 million
  (2005: Rs Nil) 309,462 212 ,955

 331,576   249,921
Less: Provision for obsolescence 19.2  (2,230) -

 329,346  249,921

19.119.119.119.119.1 Stores and spares include items which may result in fixed capital expenditure but are
not distinguishable.
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20062006200620062006 20052005200520052005

NoteNoteNoteNoteNote (Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)

19.219.219.219.219.2 Provision for obsolescenceProvision for obsolescenceProvision for obsolescenceProvision for obsolescenceProvision for obsolescence

Opening balance - 418
Addition during the year  35,258 6,628
Less: Write off during the year  (33,028)  (7,046)

Closing balance  2,230 -

20.20.20.20.20. Stock in tradeStock in tradeStock in tradeStock in tradeStock in trade

Raw and packing materials including in transit
  Rs 303.618 million (2005: Nil)  1,253,755  456,348
Work-in-process  136,218  130,560
Finished goods 399,550  822,272
Goods purchased for resale including in transit
  Rs 9.963 million (2005: Nil) 117,777  83,803

 1,907,300  1,492,983
Less: Provision for obsolescence 20.1  -  -

 1,907,300  1,492,983

20.120.120.120.120.1 Provision for obsolescenceProvision for obsolescenceProvision for obsolescenceProvision for obsolescenceProvision for obsolescence

Opening balance  -  918
Addition during the year  -  -
Less:  Write off during the year -  (918)

Closing balance  -  -

21.21.21.21.21. Trade debtsTrade debtsTrade debtsTrade debtsTrade debts

Considered good:

   Related parties - unsecured 21.1  2,695  4,142
   Others - unsecured 235,596  43,156
Considered doubtful - others  848  848

 239,139  48,146
Less:  Provision for doubtful debts 21.2  (848)  (848)

 238,291  47,298
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20062006200620062006 20052005200520052005

NoteNoteNoteNoteNote (Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)

21.121.121.121.121.1 Due from related partiesDue from related partiesDue from related partiesDue from related partiesDue from related parties

Nestrade - associated company  2,695  4,142

These are in the normal course of business
and are interest free.

21.221.221.221.221.2 Provision for doubtful debtsProvision for doubtful debtsProvision for doubtful debtsProvision for doubtful debtsProvision for doubtful debts

Opening balance  848  5,326
Addition during the year  80  633
Less: Write off during the year  (80)  (5,111)

Closing balance  848  848

22.22.22.22.22. Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivablesAdvances, deposits, prepayments and other receivablesAdvances, deposits, prepayments and other receivablesAdvances, deposits, prepayments and other receivablesAdvances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables

Advances to employees - considered good 22.1  9,503  9,050
Advances to suppliers - considered good  762,899  309,878
Due from related parties - unsecured 22.2  227,238  79,213
Trade deposits and prepayments - considered good  45,245  27,214
Income tax recoverable  816,536  467,018
Sales tax refundable  186,777  -
Other receivables - considered good  61,116  23,958

2,109,314  916,331

 22.1 22.1 22.1 22.1 22.1 Chief Executive and Directors have not taken any loan and advance from the Company.
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20062006200620062006 20052005200520052005

(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)

22.222.222.222.222.2 Due from related parties:Due from related parties:Due from related parties:Due from related parties:Due from related parties:

Foreign Associated CompaniesForeign Associated CompaniesForeign Associated CompaniesForeign Associated CompaniesForeign Associated Companies
Nestrade  130,526  -
Nestlé Morocco SA  52  52
Nestlé Food Malaysia Sdn Bhd  -  26
Nestlé Cote D ' Ivorie  122  3,376
Nestlé China Ltd.  421  316
PT Nestlé Indonesia  11,222  1,798
Nestlé Iran P. J. S.Co.  605  605
Nestlé Shanghai Limited  -  34
Nestlé Vietnam Ltd.  37  37
Nestlé UK Limited  1,821  1,821
Nestlé Dairy Cambodia Ltd.  575  575
Nestlé France S.A.  -  2,193
Nestlé Middle East FZE  609  708
Nestlé Nederland B.V.  -  3,785
Nestlé Manufacturing Malaysia  416  2,273
Nestlé Tianjin Limited  2,961  5,067
Nestlé India Ltd.  33  1,179
Nestlé Australia Limited  562  1,775
Nestlé Deutschland AG  -  1,919
Nestlé Water Philipines Inc.  -  547
Nestlé Turkiye Gida Sanayi A.S.  621  621
SBECM  -  201
Nestlé Espana SA  4,087  3,547
CPW Philippines  5,951  1,341
Nestlé South Africa Pty Limited  -  149
Tetra Pak Export Ltd.  -  44,517
Nestlé Asean (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd  207  -
Nestlé Thai Limited  432  -
Nestlé Chile S.A  65,470  -
Societe De Bouchages Emballages  70  -
Perrier Vittel (Thailand) Ltd  67  -
Nestlé Water Middle East  67  -
Epond 304  -

Local Associated CompaniesLocal Associated CompaniesLocal Associated CompaniesLocal Associated CompaniesLocal Associated Companies
Siemens Pakistan Engineering Limited  -  598
Wazir Ali Industries Limited  -  153

 227,238  79,213

These mainly represent sharing of expense on behalf of each other in the normal course of
business and are interest free.
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20062006200620062006 20052005200520052005

NoteNoteNoteNoteNote (Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)

23.23.23.23.23. Cash and bank balancesCash and bank balancesCash and bank balancesCash and bank balancesCash and bank balances

At banks on:
Saving accounts 23.1 -  2,494
Deposit accounts 23.2  -  850,000
Current accounts 820  30

 820  852,524
Cash and cheques in hand 23.3  33,843  6,471

 34,663  858,995

23.123.123.123.123.1 The balances in saving accounts bear mark up at the rate of 0.1% - 1% per annum
during 2005. The Company has closed all saving accounts during the year.

23.223.223.223.223.2 The balances in deposit accounts bear mark up at the rate of Nil (2005: 11.25% to
11.5%) per annum.

23.323.323.323.323.3 Cash in hand includes Rs 9.162 million (2005: Rs 4.753 million) in respect of imprest
cash given to employees in ordinary course of business.

20062006200620062006 20052005200520052005

(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)

24.24.24.24.24. Sales - netSales - netSales - netSales - netSales - net

Own manufactured
   Local 22,050,093  17,163,797
   Export 1,355,324  1,001,590

 23,405,417  18,165,387
Goods purchased for resale  656,591  620,390
Less :
   Sales tax  (700,703)  (625,331)
   Trade discounts  (1,330,347)  (1,018,083)

22,030,958  17,142,363
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20062006200620062006 20052005200520052005

RestatedRestatedRestatedRestatedRestated

NoteNoteNoteNoteNote (Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)

25,25,25,25,25, Cost of goods soldCost of goods soldCost of goods soldCost of goods soldCost of goods sold

Raw and packing materials consumed 25.1  11,676,369  9,493,948
Salaries, wages and amenities 25.2  832,743  575,993
Fuel and power  591,589  521,244
Insurance  15,418  17,504
Repairs, maintenance and stores consumption 25.3  442,731  346,747
Rent, rates and taxes  90,138  40,274
Depreciation 14.3  451,734  407,695
Amortization  17,152  13,398
Expenses on information technology  84,092  60,525
Stationery expenses  19,718  11,862
Quality assurance  77,629  37,268
Royalty and technical assistance fee  584,553  441,775
Others 130,279  93,390

 15,014,145  12,061,623
(Increase) in work in process  (5,658)  (35,443)

Cost of goods manufactured  15,008,487  12,026,180
Decrease/(increase) in finished goods  422,722  (57,336)

Cost of goods sold - own manufactured  15,431,209  11,968,844
Cost of goods sold - purchased for resale  347,121  385,774

15,778,330  12,354,618

25.125.125.125.125.1 Included in raw and packing materials consumed is provision for obsolete stock of
Rs Nil (2005: Rs Nil). Also included in raw and packing materials consumed is stock
directly written off of Rs Nil million (2005: Rs 0.209 million).

25.225.225.225.225.2 Salaries, wages and amenities include Rs 12.021 million (2005 - restated: Rs 6.529
million) in respect of  gratuity, Rs 9.571 million (2005 - restated: Rs 8.310 million) in
respect of pension and Rs 19.386 million (2005: Rs 14.131 million) in respect of provident
fund.

25.325.325.325.325.3 Included in repairs, maintenance and stores consumption is provision of Rs 2.230
million (2005: Rs 6.628 million) and reversal of provision for obsolete stores of Rs Nil
(2005: Rs Nil). Also included in repair, maintenance and stores consumed is store and
spares directly written off of Rs 33.028 million (2005: Rs 22.283 million)
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20062006200620062006 20052005200520052005

RestatedRestatedRestatedRestatedRestated

NoteNoteNoteNoteNote (Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)

26.26.26.26.26. Distribution and selling expensesDistribution and selling expensesDistribution and selling expensesDistribution and selling expensesDistribution and selling expenses

Salaries, wages, amenities and other benefits 26.1  603,708  434,841
Training  24,145  16,504
Rent, rates and taxes  56,427  36,433
Insurance  5,829  5,903
Freight outward  751,444  553,940
Depreciation 14.3  90,567  69,822
Amortization  1,115  835
Sales promotion and advertisement  1,195,870  801,352
Legal and professional charges  5,474  6,901
Vehicle running and maintenance  18,050  17,354
Utilities  11,832  11,575
Repairs and maintenance  24,767  19,333
Subscription, stationery, printing and publication  8,044  9,268
Communications  12,914  10,470
Travelling, conveyance and vehicle running  80,119  75,573
Provision for doubtful debts  80  613
Other expenses  34,733  19,752

2,925,118  2,090,469

26.126.126.126.126.1 Salaries, wages, amenities and other benefits include Rs 14.235 million (2005 - restated:
Rs 7.854 million) in respect of gratuity, Rs 11.334 million (2005 - restated: Rs 9.550
million) in respect of pension and Rs 23.391 million (2005: Rs 15.796 million) in respect
of provident fund.

20062006200620062006 20052005200520052005

RestatedRestatedRestatedRestatedRestated

NoteNoteNoteNoteNote (Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)

27.27.27.27.27. Administration expensesAdministration expensesAdministration expensesAdministration expensesAdministration expenses

Salaries, wages, amenities and other benefits 27.1  290,798  221,968
Training  16,746  10,283
Rent, rates and taxes  39,113  33,019
Insurance  2,029  2,597
Depreciation 14.3  37,217  38,564
Amortization  24,371  21,298
Legal and professional charges 27.2  17,766  12,512
Vehicles running and maintenance  7,235  6,039
Utilities  10,489  11,299
Repairs and maintenance  9,294  16,792
Subscription, stationery, printing and publication  18,473  27,554
Communications  36,975  35,720
Travelling and conveyance  43,660  42,796
Expenses on information technology  103,196  66,684
Other expenses  29,730  29,590

 687,092  576,715
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27.127.127.127.127.1 Salaries, wages, amenities and other benefits include Rs 5.378 million (2005 - restated:
Rs 2.788 million) in respect of gratuity, Rs 4.282 million (2005 - restated: Rs 6.105
million) in respect of pension and Rs 8.941 million (2005: Rs 6.726 million) in respect
of provident fund.

20062006200620062006 20052005200520052005

NoteNoteNoteNoteNote (Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)

27.227.227.227.227.2 Legal and professional chargesLegal and professional chargesLegal and professional chargesLegal and professional chargesLegal and professional charges

  include the following:  include the following:  include the following:  include the following:  include the following:

Statutory audit  375  375
Half yearly review  125  125
Services in connection with review and reporting of
   accounts to parent company auditors  100  -
Audit of accounts of staff retriement benefits  36  -
Other sundry certificates  12  12
Out of pocket expenses  133  62

 781  574

28.28.28.28.28. Finance costFinance costFinance costFinance costFinance cost

Mark-up on long term finances - secured  80,190  106,100
Mark-up on short term running finances - secured  159,216  51,515
Mark-up on loan from associated company  186,373  772
Finance cost on liability against assets
  subject to finance lease 1  15
Interest on workers' profit participation fund 11.1  1,563  -
Others 20,431  21,706

447,774  180,108

29.29.29.29.29. Other operating expensesOther operating expensesOther operating expensesOther operating expensesOther operating expenses

Workers' profit participation fund 11.1  107,703  86,974
Workers' welfare fund  40,927  21,911
Donations 29.1  54,050  67,854
Loss on disposal of fixed assets  -  5,089
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment  -  158,430
Exchange loss  55,350  2,899
Others 5,891  13,371

263,921  356,528

29.129.129.129.129.1 DonationsDonationsDonationsDonationsDonations

Name of donee in which a director or his spouse
  has an interest:
Lahore University of Management Sciences
  (LUMS), Defence Housing Authority, Lahore  50,000  50,167
(Syed Babar Ali, Director is also
  Pro-Chancellor of the LUMS)

 50,000  50,167
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20062006200620062006 20052005200520052005

(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)

30.30.30.30.30. Other operating incomeOther operating incomeOther operating incomeOther operating incomeOther operating income

Income from financial assetsIncome from financial assetsIncome from financial assetsIncome from financial assetsIncome from financial assets
Return on bank deposits 3,016  4
Exchange gain 18,771  -

 21,787  4

Income from non-financial assetsIncome from non-financial assetsIncome from non-financial assetsIncome from non-financial assetsIncome from non-financial assets
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment 19,608  -
Sale of scrap 28,758  17,881
Reversal of sale tax provision -  32,221
Others  6,579  3,045

 54,945  53,147

 76,732  53,151

20062006200620062006 20052005200520052005

RestatedRestatedRestatedRestatedRestated

(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)

31.31.31.31.31. TaxationTaxationTaxationTaxationTaxation

Current year
    Current 110,724  384,322
    Deferred 506,708  258,965

 617,432  643,287
Prior year
    Current 24,733  (169,320)
    Deferred -  10,178

 642,165  484,145
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20062006200620062006 20052005200520052005

RestatedRestatedRestatedRestatedRestated

%%%%%  % % % % %

31.131.131.131.131.1 Tax charge reconciliationTax charge reconciliationTax charge reconciliationTax charge reconciliationTax charge reconciliation

Numerical reconciliation between the average
   effective tax rate and the applicable tax rate:
Applicable tax rate  35.00  35.00
Tax effect of amounts that are:
   Not deductible for tax purposes  0.94  1.34
   Allowable for tax purposes (0.13)  (1.06)
   Effect of items not allowable due to change in legislation 0.46  -
Effect of changes in prior years' tax/surcharge 1.23  (2.64)
Effect of prior year taxes related to items
  accounted for in equity  (0.41)  (0.41)
Tax effect under presumptive tax regime  (5.48)  (3.06)

 (3.39)  (5.83)
Average effective tax rate charged to profit
  and loss account 31.61  29.17

Average effective tax rate includes the tax impact of items directly recognized in equity.

20062006200620062006 20052005200520052005
Restated

32.32.32.32.32. Earnings per shareEarnings per shareEarnings per shareEarnings per shareEarnings per share

32.132.132.132.132.1 Basic earnings per shareBasic earnings per shareBasic earnings per shareBasic earnings per shareBasic earnings per share

Profit after taxation available for

    distribution to ordinary shareholders Rupees in '000'  1,363,290  1,152,931

Weighted average number of ordinary shares Number in '000'  45,350  45,350

Basic earnings per share Rupees  30.06  25.42

32.232.232.232.232.2 Diluted earnings per shareDiluted earnings per shareDiluted earnings per shareDiluted earnings per shareDiluted earnings per share

There is no dilution effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company as it has no
such commitments.
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33.33.33.33.33. Transactions with related partiesTransactions with related partiesTransactions with related partiesTransactions with related partiesTransactions with related parties

The related parties comprise associated undertakings, key management personnel and
employees retirement benefit funds. The Company in the normal course of business carries
out transactions with various related parties. Amounts due from and to related parties are
shown under receivables and payables. Amounts due from key management personnel are
shown under receivables and remuneration of key management personnel is disclosed in
note 36. Other significant transactions with related parties are as follows:

20062006200620062006 20052005200520052005

RestatedRestatedRestatedRestatedRestated

(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)

Associated companiesAssociated companiesAssociated companiesAssociated companiesAssociated companies
Royalty and technical assistance fee 584,447 441,609
Purchase of goods, services and rental 5,225,872 3,540,811
Sale of goods and services 64,875 54,967
Contribution to staff retirement benefit plan 69,295 42,216
Interest on loan 186,373 772
Sale of fixed assets 34,240 -

All transactions with related parties have been carried out
on commercial terms and conditions.

34.34.34.34.34. Cash generated from operationsCash generated from operationsCash generated from operationsCash generated from operationsCash generated from operations

Profit before taxation  2,005,455  1,637,076
Adjustment for non-cash charges and other items:
   Depreciation and amortization  622,481  551,612
   Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment  -  158,430
   (Profit)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  (19,608)  5,089
   Stock in trade directly written off -  209
   Provision for obsolete stores and spares  2,230  6,628
   Store and spares directly written off  33,028  22,283
   Provision for doubtful debts  80  633
   Retirement and other benefits  56,821  77,789
   Finance cost  447,774  180,108

Profit before working capital changes  3,148,261  2,639,857
Effect on cash flow due to working capital changes:
   (Increase) in stores and spares  (114,683)  (16,684)
   (Increase)/decrease in stock in trade  (414,317)  203,107
   (Increase) in trade debts  (191,073)  (21,530)
   (Increase) in advances, deposits, prepayments
     and other receivables  (843,465)  (222,763)
   Increase in trade and other payables  12,456  1,157,873
   Increase in customer security deposits - interest free  21,835  15,590

 (1,529,247)  1,115,593

1,619,014  3,755,450
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20062006200620062006 20052005200520052005

RestatedRestatedRestatedRestatedRestated

NoteNoteNoteNoteNote (Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)(Rupees in thousands)

35,35,35,35,35, Cash and cash equivalentsCash and cash equivalentsCash and cash equivalentsCash and cash equivalentsCash and cash equivalents

Cash and bank balances 23  34,663  858,995
Short term running finance under mark-up
   arrangements - secured (1,817,711)  (1,121,041)

(1,783,048) (262,046)

36.36.36.36.36. Remuneration of Chairman, Chief Executive and ExecutivesRemuneration of Chairman, Chief Executive and ExecutivesRemuneration of Chairman, Chief Executive and ExecutivesRemuneration of Chairman, Chief Executive and ExecutivesRemuneration of Chairman, Chief Executive and Executives

The aggregate amount charged in these financial statements during the year for remuneration,
including certain benefits to the Chairman, Chief Executive and Executives of the Company
were as follows:

ChairmanChairmanChairmanChairmanChairman Chief ExecutiveChief ExecutiveChief ExecutiveChief ExecutiveChief Executive ExecutivesExecutivesExecutivesExecutivesExecutives

  2006  2006  2006  2006  2006 20052005200520052005 20062006200620062006 20052005200520052005 20062006200620062006 20052005200520052005

(  R  u  p  e  e  s    i  n    t  h  o  u  s  a  n  d  s  )(  R  u  p  e  e  s    i  n    t  h  o  u  s  a  n  d  s  )(  R  u  p  e  e  s    i  n    t  h  o  u  s  a  n  d  s  )(  R  u  p  e  e  s    i  n    t  h  o  u  s  a  n  d  s  )(  R  u  p  e  e  s    i  n    t  h  o  u  s  a  n  d  s  )

Managerial
   remuneration        1,465  1,465  9,157  8,418  283,110  208,781

Bonus  -  -  2,721  1,141  72,773  33,203

Retirement benefits  -  237  -  -  42,209  28,003

Housing  -  -  2,460  2,570  7,179  4,530

Utilities  120  120  -  -  15,442  9,860
Reimbursable
   expenses  539  539  2,983  1,415  46,445  38,136

 2,124  2,361  17,321  13,544  467,158  322,513

Number of personsNumber of personsNumber of personsNumber of personsNumber of persons 1 1 1 1 193 137

The chairman, chief executive and certain executives of the Company are provided with use
of Company maintained vehicles and residential telephones.

Aggregate amount charged in these financial statements for the year for fee to directors was
Rs Nil (2005: Rs Nil).
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37.37.37.37.37. Financial assets and liabilitiesFinancial assets and liabilitiesFinancial assets and liabilitiesFinancial assets and liabilitiesFinancial assets and liabilities

                        Int                        Int                        Int                        Int                        Interest/mark up bearingerest/mark up bearingerest/mark up bearingerest/mark up bearingerest/mark up bearing                                                            Non interest/markup bearing                                                            Non interest/markup bearing                                                            Non interest/markup bearing                                                            Non interest/markup bearing                                                            Non interest/markup bearing

Maturity fromMaturity fromMaturity fromMaturity fromMaturity from Maturity ofMaturity ofMaturity ofMaturity ofMaturity of Maturity fromMaturity fromMaturity fromMaturity fromMaturity from Maturity ofMaturity ofMaturity ofMaturity ofMaturity of

Maturity uptoMaturity uptoMaturity uptoMaturity uptoMaturity upto two totwo totwo totwo totwo to more thanmore thanmore thanmore thanmore than Maturity uptoMaturity uptoMaturity uptoMaturity uptoMaturity upto two totwo totwo totwo totwo to more thanmore thanmore thanmore thanmore than                  Total                 Total                 Total                 Total                 Total

one yearone yearone yearone yearone year five yearsfive yearsfive yearsfive yearsfive years five yearsfive yearsfive yearsfive yearsfive years Sub totalSub totalSub totalSub totalSub total one yearone yearone yearone yearone year five yearsfive yearsfive yearsfive yearsfive years five yearsfive yearsfive yearsfive yearsfive years Sub totalSub totalSub totalSub totalSub total 20062006200620062006 20052005200520052005

( R( R( R( R( R uuuuu ppppp eeeee eeeee s    is    is    is    is    i n    tn    tn    tn    tn    t hhhhh ooooo uuuuu sssss aaaaa nnnnn d  s )d  s )d  s )d  s )d  s )
Financial assetsFinancial assetsFinancial assetsFinancial assetsFinancial assets

Long term loans and advances  -  26,581  -   26,581  8,771  39,427  -  48,198  74,779  51,315

Long term security deposits  -  -  -  -  -  -  6,088  6,088  6,088  5,338

Trade debts  -  -  -  -  238,291  -  -  238,291  238,291  47,298

Advances, deposits, prepayments

  and other receivables  -  -  -  -  288,354  -  -  288,354  288,354  103,171

Cash and bank balances  -  -  -  -  34,663  -  -  34,663  34,663  858,995

 -  26,581  -  26,581  570,079 39,427  6,088  615,594  642,175  1,066,117

Financial liabilitiesFinancial liabilitiesFinancial liabilitiesFinancial liabilitiesFinancial liabilities

Long term finances-secured  300,000  3,963,700  -  4,263,700  -  -  -  -  4,263,700  2,346,850

Customer security

  deposits - interest free  -  -  -  -  102,307  -  -  102,307  102,307  80,472

Short term borrowings - secured  700,000  -  -  700,000  -  -  -  -  700,000  125,000

Short term running finance under

  mark-up arrangements - secured  1,817,711  -  -  1,817,711  -  -  -  -  1,817,711  1,121,041

Liabilities against assets subject

  to finance lease  -  -  -  -  8,392  31,471  -  39,863  39,863  31

Trade and other payables  -  -  -  -  1,965,400  -  -  1,965,400  1,965,400  1,634,921

Interest and mark up accrued  -  -  -  -  98,549  -  -  98,549  98,549  45,358

 2,817,711  3,963,700  -  6,781,411  2,174,648  31,471  -  2,206,119  8,987,530  5,353,673

Off balance sheet financial instrumentsOff balance sheet financial instrumentsOff balance sheet financial instrumentsOff balance sheet financial instrumentsOff balance sheet financial instruments

Contingencies and commitments  383,236  1,086,125

Guarantees  219,933  86,180

Letters of credit  286,938  237,759

 890,107  1,410,064

The effective interest/mark-up rates for the monetary financial assets and liabilities are mentioned in respective notes to the financial statements.

37.137.137.137.137.1 Financial risk management objectivesFinancial risk management objectivesFinancial risk management objectivesFinancial risk management objectivesFinancial risk management objectives

The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of
working capital with a view to obtain a reasonable mix between the various sources of
finance to minimize risk.

Taken as a whole, risk arising from the Company»s financial instruments is limited as
there is no significant exposure to market risk in respect of such instruments.

37.1.1 Foreign exchange risk management37.1.1 Foreign exchange risk management37.1.1 Foreign exchange risk management37.1.1 Foreign exchange risk management37.1.1 Foreign exchange risk management

Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to
transactions entered into foreign currency. The Company is exposed to foreign
currency risk on sales, purchases and borrowings that are entered in a currency
other than Pak Rupees. The Company uses forward exchange contracts to hedge
its foreign currency risk, when considered appropriate.
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37.1.237.1.237.1.237.1.237.1.2 Concentration of credit riskConcentration of credit riskConcentration of credit riskConcentration of credit riskConcentration of credit risk

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting
date if counter parties failed completely to perform as contracted. The Company's
credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade debts and loans and advances. The
Company has no significant concentration of credit risk as exposure is spread over a
large number of counter parties in the case of trade debts. Of the total financial assets
of Rs 642.175 million (2005: Rs 1,066.117 million) financial assets which are subject
to credit risk amount to Rs 607.512 million (2005: Rs 207.122 million). To manage
exposure to credit risk, the Company applies credit limits to its customers and obtains
advances from them.

37.1.337.1.337.1.337.1.337.1.3 Fair values of financial assets and liabilitiesFair values of financial assets and liabilitiesFair values of financial assets and liabilitiesFair values of financial assets and liabilitiesFair values of financial assets and liabilities

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in financial statements
approximate their fair values. Fair value is determined on the basis of objective evidence
at each reporting date.

37.1.437.1.437.1.437.1.437.1.4 Liquidity riskLiquidity riskLiquidity riskLiquidity riskLiquidity risk

Liquidity risk reflects an enterprise's inability in raising funds to meet commitments.
The company follows an effective cash management and planning policy and maintains
flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available.

37.1.537.1.537.1.537.1.537.1.5 Interest rate riskInterest rate riskInterest rate riskInterest rate riskInterest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to
changes in market interest rates. The Company has adopted appropriate policies to
cover interest rate risk.

CapacityCapacityCapacityCapacityCapacity ProductionProductionProductionProductionProduction

20062006200620062006 20052005200520052005 20062006200620062006 20052005200520052005

38.38.38.38.38. Capacity and productionCapacity and productionCapacity and productionCapacity and productionCapacity and production

Liquid products - litres (000) 708,919  574,626  499,259  392,812

Non-liquid products - kgs (000) 80,963 69,583 44,215  39,308

Under utilization of capacity was mainly due to seasonality impact of fresh milk and increase
in capacity through new investment to meet future requirement.

39.39.39.39.39. Segment reportingSegment reportingSegment reportingSegment reportingSegment reporting

Segment information is presented in respect of the Company's business. The primary format,
business segment, is based on the Company's management reporting structure.
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Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as
well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated assets and liabilities
include short term and long term borrowings, employees retirement benefits and other
operating liabilities.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire segment
assets that are expected to be used for more than one year.

The Company's operations comprise of the following main business segments:

- Milk and nutrition products; and- Milk and nutrition products; and- Milk and nutrition products; and- Milk and nutrition products; and- Milk and nutrition products; and

- Beverages- Beverages- Beverages- Beverages- Beverages

Segment analysis for the year ended December 31,  2006Segment analysis for the year ended December 31,  2006Segment analysis for the year ended December 31,  2006Segment analysis for the year ended December 31,  2006Segment analysis for the year ended December 31,  2006

Milk andMilk andMilk andMilk andMilk and
NutritionNutritionNutritionNutritionNutrition OtherOtherOtherOtherOther
ProductsProductsProductsProductsProducts BeveragesBeveragesBeveragesBeveragesBeverages OperationsOperationsOperationsOperationsOperations TotalTotalTotalTotalTotal

(  R  u  p  e  e  s   i(  R  u  p  e  e  s   i(  R  u  p  e  e  s   i(  R  u  p  e  e  s   i(  R  u  p  e  e  s   i     n   t  h  o  u  s  a  n  d  s  )n   t  h  o  u  s  a  n  d  s  )n   t  h  o  u  s  a  n  d  s  )n   t  h  o  u  s  a  n  d  s  )n   t  h  o  u  s  a  n  d  s  )

SalesSalesSalesSalesSales

External sales  18,829,817  2,870,761  330,380  22,030,958

Inter-segment salesInter-segment salesInter-segment salesInter-segment salesInter-segment sales -  -  -  -

Total revenue  18,829,817  2,870,761  330,380  22,030,958

Profit before tax and unallocatedProfit before tax and unallocatedProfit before tax and unallocatedProfit before tax and unallocatedProfit before tax and unallocated

  expenses  expenses  expenses  expenses  expenses  2,702,976  (31,719)  (30,839)  2,640,418

Unallocated corporate expenses:
   Finance cost  (4 47,774)
   Other operating expenses  (263,921)
   Other operating income  76,732
   Taxation  (642,165)

Profit after taxation  1,363,290
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Milk andMilk andMilk andMilk andMilk and
NutritionNutritionNutritionNutritionNutrition OtherOtherOtherOtherOther
ProductsProductsProductsProductsProducts BeveragesBeveragesBeveragesBeveragesBeverages OperationsOperationsOperationsOperationsOperations TotalTotalTotalTotalTotal

(  R  u  p  e  e  s   i(  R  u  p  e  e  s   i(  R  u  p  e  e  s   i(  R  u  p  e  e  s   i(  R  u  p  e  e  s   i     n   t  h  o  u  s  a  n  d  s  )n   t  h  o  u  s  a  n  d  s  )n   t  h  o  u  s  a  n  d  s  )n   t  h  o  u  s  a  n  d  s  )n   t  h  o  u  s  a  n  d  s  )

Segment assets and liabilitiesSegment assets and liabilitiesSegment assets and liabilitiesSegment assets and liabilitiesSegment assets and liabilities

Segment assets  7,012,872  1,434,044  51,955  8,498,871
Unallocated assets  4,429,031

Consolidated total assets  12,927,902

Segment liabilities  1,506,802  315,178  517,811  2,339,791
Unallocated liabilities  8,057,031

Consolidated total liabilities  10,396,822

Segment capital expenditureSegment capital expenditureSegment capital expenditureSegment capital expenditureSegment capital expenditure  2,741,606  649,247  -  3,390,853
Unallocated capital expenditure  193,575

 3,584,428

Non-cash expenses other than depreciation and amortizationNon-cash expenses other than depreciation and amortizationNon-cash expenses other than depreciation and amortizationNon-cash expenses other than depreciation and amortizationNon-cash expenses other than depreciation and amortization

Bad debts  80 - -  80

Depreciation and amortizationDepreciation and amortizationDepreciation and amortizationDepreciation and amortizationDepreciation and amortization  442,512  167,170  12,799  622,481

Segment analysis for the yearSegment analysis for the yearSegment analysis for the yearSegment analysis for the yearSegment analysis for the year

  ended December 31, 2005 - restated  ended December 31, 2005 - restated  ended December 31, 2005 - restated  ended December 31, 2005 - restated  ended December 31, 2005 - restated

SalesSalesSalesSalesSales
External sales  14,729,654  2,110,077  302,632  17,142,363

Inter-segment salesInter-segment salesInter-segment salesInter-segment salesInter-segment sales  -  -  -  -

Total revenue  14,729,654  2,110,077  302,632  17,142,363

Profit before tax and unallocatedProfit before tax and unallocatedProfit before tax and unallocatedProfit before tax and unallocatedProfit before tax and unallocated

  expenses  expenses  expenses  expenses  expenses  2,019,992  20,473  (59,113)  1,981,352

Unallocated corporate expenses:
   Finance cost  (180,108)
   Other operating expenses  (185,098)
   Other operating income  20,930
   Taxation  (484,145)

Profit after taxation  1,152,931
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Milk andMilk andMilk andMilk andMilk and
NutritionNutritionNutritionNutritionNutrition OtherOtherOtherOtherOther
ProductsProductsProductsProductsProducts BeveragesBeveragesBeveragesBeveragesBeverages OperationsOperationsOperationsOperationsOperations TotalTotalTotalTotalTotal

(  R  u  p  e  e  s   i(  R  u  p  e  e  s   i(  R  u  p  e  e  s   i(  R  u  p  e  e  s   i(  R  u  p  e  e  s   i     n   t  h  o  u  s  a  n  d  s  )n   t  h  o  u  s  a  n  d  s  )n   t  h  o  u  s  a  n  d  s  )n   t  h  o  u  s  a  n  d  s  )n   t  h  o  u  s  a  n  d  s  )

Segment assetsSegment assetsSegment assetsSegment assetsSegment assets  5,563,516  1,416,372  176,446  7,156,334
Unallocated assets  1,730,880

Consolidated total assets  8,887,214

Segment liabilitiesSegment liabilitiesSegment liabilitiesSegment liabilitiesSegment liabilities  1,351,015  393,280  531,064  2,275,359
Unallocated liabilities  4,748,473

Consolidated total liabilities  7,023,832

Segment capital expenditureSegment capital expenditureSegment capital expenditureSegment capital expenditureSegment capital expenditure  2,163,592  156,229  4,757  2,324,578
Unallocated capital expenditure  441,695

 2,766,273

Impairment loss on property,
  plant and equipment - 129,419  29,011  158,430

Depreciation and amortization  414,359  106,730  30,523  551,612

40.40.40.40.40. Date of authorization for issueDate of authorization for issueDate of authorization for issueDate of authorization for issueDate of authorization for issue

These financial statements were authorized for issue on March 05, 2007 by the Board of
Directors.

41.41.41.41.41. DividendDividendDividendDividendDividend

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on March 05, 2007 have proposed a final dividend
for the year ended December 31, 2006 @ Rs 5 per share, amounting to Rs 226.748 million for
approval of the members in the Annual General Meeting to be held on April 23, 2007. These
financial statements do not reflect this dividend.

42.42.42.42.42. GeneralGeneralGeneralGeneralGeneral

42.142.142.142.142.1 Corresponding figuresCorresponding figuresCorresponding figuresCorresponding figuresCorresponding figures

Previous year»s figures have been rearranged, wherever necessary for the purpose of
comparison. Material rearrangements include reclassification of customer security
deposits from long term liabilities to current liabilities.

42.242.242.242.242.2 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest of thousand of rupee.
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